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                                                               Unfit for Public Office

Dear Mrs. Dunwoody,

In your October 2006 report "Roads Policing and Technology - Getting the Balance Right" your Committee stated that "In terms of value for money. the speed camera was shown to be the most cost effective” and on that basis you called for more speed cameras but not for more vehicle activated signs.

I wrote to you on 8th November 2006 pointing out in some detail that this claim, based on DfT figures (report pg. EV157) supplied by Dr. Stephen Ladyman were clearly nonsense and hence dangerously misleading. You replied on 4th December that "The Committee does not feel that it has been misled by the Government over the relative cost-effectiveness of speed cameras and flashing signs". You also dismissed out of hand my assertion that replacing cameras with signs would be a very cost-effective way of improving road safety. 

After Mark Magee of the DfT also denied in his letter dated 17th January 2007 that the figures were misleading I used the Freedom of Information Act to obtain official figures confirming beyond doubt that your figures were grossly misleading. I then copied you these figures, with a more detailed analysis of the DfT’s error-strewn cost-effectiveness comparison on 19th March 2007, but your dismissive single paragraph reply of 20th March 2007 stated only my letter had been forwarded to the Clerk to the Committee for your "records and future use if and when we investigate this issue again."

I had however copied my letter of 19th March to Dr. Ladyman and to the DfT, and on the 23rd April Dr. Ladyman, who had previously ignored my complaint, was forced to write to you on 23rd April 2007 to confirm that the DfT figures were indeed wrong, admitting that:

(a) The cost of the speed camera installation, originally given as £7,500, failed to include the £32,000 cost of the camera itself.

(b) The £14,000 figure given for the cost of the flashing sign was actually for two signs, not one.

Always careful to mention my name or involvement, or the other errors I had pointed out Dr. Ladyman then admitted that flashing signs are in fact some nine times more cost effective than speed cameras, not 12% less. Astonishingly he also claimed that the spurious figures had been submitted "in good faith" and that he and the DfT "could not reasonably have known" that the figures were wrong.

Let’s be quite clear about this preposterous statement - Dr. Ladyman expected you to believe that he and the DfT, in overall charge of a massive speed camera programme that had been running for years, “could not reasonably have known” that a speed camera costs far more than £7,500 a year  or that a flashing sign must inherently cost much less  despite the relevant figures long having been in the public domain in reports on speed cameras and in TRL548 on flashing signs!

Furthermore, he went on to claim, astonishingly, that having been forced to admit that signs are nine times as cost effective as cameras was no reason to change you recommendation for more cameras to one for more signs.

Astonishingly, you replied to Dr. Ladyman on 26th April 2007 accepting that these quite preposterous statements and indeed managed in your reply to conjure up an air of triumph over what you described as “the pro-speeding lobby” that the error, being only a factor of ten, was of no significance! Further, in placing the two letters being placed on your Committee’s web site but not issuing a formal amendment or appendix to your report, you ensured that no one not already aware of these letters would be likely to see them. Further, to this day the DfT web site still shows these invalid figures.

As you and your Committee appear unable or unwilling to understand the significance of these figures in road safety terms, I set them out below, using the DfT’s own figures and those I have established under Freedom of Information:

1/ The average annual cost of a speed camera, amortised over several years and including operating costs of the penalty system which is an essential part is in excess of £50,000 (Source: PA Consulting’s 4th Annual Report, or add to Dr.Ladyman’s admission of £40,000 p.a. say £10,000 for the penalty system that he failed to include) 

2/ Each camera eliminates on average 2.2 accidents p.a. (Source  DfT and your own report pg. EV157 onwards)

3/ The typical installation cost of a flashing sign is of the order of £6,000, but with average running costs of less than £250 p.a. the average annual costs over 10 years is less than £1,000 a year (Source  Norfolk County Council in response to my Freedom of Information questions, as copied to you)

3/ Each sign eliminates on average 3.1 accidents p.a. (Source  DfT and your own report pg. EV157 onwards) 

What this tells us  even the bears of little brain,  is that while £50,000 p.a. spent on 50 signs at £1,000 p.a. might be expected to eliminate about 50 x 3.1 (155) accidents p.a., £50,000 spent on one speed camera might be expected to eliminate 2.2 accidents pa  a difference of 70 (yes seventy) to one. I should of course add that these figures can only ever be approximate, but that the magnitude of the discrepancy is such that it really makes no difference whether that ratio is 70, 100, or 20 to 1.) 

That faced with these damning figures you and Dr. Ladyman refuse to admit the truth, and refuse to withdraw your recommendation for more cameras and replace it with a recommendation for more signs and fewer cameras, is a damning indictment in the first place of your competence, and in the second place of your determination to avoid at all costs admitting your errors, even when life and limb are at risk as a direct result of your blunders.

I should also add that your claim in your reply to Dr. Ladyman that cameras are necessary to "deter" speeding motorists is utterly bizarre - just how much money that could be spent on signs that save lives and injuries are your prepared to spend instead on deterrence? Have you lost the plot Mrs. Dunwoody, and forgotten that the object of road safety policy must be to save lives and injuries, not persecute drivers?

You cannot fail to be aware of the common law duty of care to others that applies to every one of us, or that those who accept public office incur direct and specific responsibility both for their actions and their failure to act - never more so than when they relate to matters of life and limb. You must therefore be aware of the offences misconduct, misfeasance and malfeasance in public office - but I wonder if you are aware of the Perjury Act 1911, and in particular Section 5:

“"False statutory declarations and other false statements without oath” which sets out the criminal penalties that apply to anyone who “knowingly and wilfully makes (otherwise than on oath) a statement false in a material particular”  “in an abstract, account, balance sheet, book, certificate, declaration, entry, estimate, inventory, notice, report, return, or other document which he is authorised or required to make, attest, or verify….”

(http://www.statutelaw.gov.uk/content.aspx?ActiveTextDocId=1069765) 

Of course mere incompetence  even on the grand scale implied by the DfT figures and your acceptance of them  does not constitute perjury without evidence of “mens rea”  the guilty mind, but when you and your colleagues failed to act after these gross errors were brought to your attention, when even the most cursory checks would have confirmed that the figures were wildly wrong, there seems to me little doubt that you should be charged, and convicted under the Perjury Act of 1911, as above. Why is it that even now, and even with your long experience as a politician, do you fail to understand that while a mistake can be a problem, it is the cover-up that is the killer?

More tragic than that however is that, to the extent that those who put road safety policy into practise have been influenced by your gross errors into spending money on cameras rather than signs, it seems inevitable that road users who could have been protected by those signs that were never installed have been injured or killed in accidents  an average of about 3 per sign  which would not have happened had you and your Committee not blundered as you did, and then failed to act when I brought your errors to your attention a year ago.

It follows that you and you Committee - and indeed your Special Advisor who to my certain knowledge was well aware of the real figures before your report was written - are unfit to hold public office and a real and present danger to road users. 

I therefore call for the immediate withdrawal of your recommendation for speed cameras, its replacement by an explanation of why signs must replace them, followed by your resignation and that of every member of your Committee implicated in this sorry affair.

Yours faithfully,

Idris Francis

